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ABOUT DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
(STOCK CODE: 8007)

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”) has been listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Exchange”) since April 2000. Started as a commerce
service provider that specialised in providing outsourcing services
for online commerce, Digital HK has strategically positioned itself
to integrate both online and offline businesses, and to engage

in technology investments focusing on healthcare and related
opportunities.

Digital HK and its subsidiaries now operate the following
complementary lines of business:

e provision of Internet and e-commerce enabling solutions, IT
consulting and technical services

® strategic investments in selected technologies and applications

e investment in lifescience and health related projects

Digital HK is a subsidiary of Champion Technology Holdings Limited,
the holding company of a communications software group listed on the
Main Board of the Exchange.

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
EXCHANGE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.
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Financial Highlights

MGERE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——F —EZ-TF ZETHNF ZTTN\F —TZTtF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Results E45
(for the year ended 30 June) (BEAB=THLEE)
— Turnover — &% 3,124 3,058 3,510 5,018 6,351
— Loss i (2,565) (2,478) (1,807) (986) (12)
— Loss per share — BiEE
— basic (in HK cents) — EARCEM) (1.71) (1.65) (1.20) (0.66) (0.01)
Financial Position BEARR
(as at 30 June) (R<A=1H)
— Non-current assets — ERBEE 2 3 8 17 24
— Current assets —RBEE 12,095 14,667 17,183 18,861 19,889
— Current liabilities — nBaE 1,016 1,024 1,067 947 996
— Equity — = 11,081 13,646 16,124 17,931 18,917
Financial Ratios /035 24
(as at 30 June) (RAB=1H)
— Current assets/Current liabilities ~— REEAE /eI BE 12 14 16 20 20
— Assets/Equity — BE /% 1.09 1.08 1.07 1.05 1.05
BIEEB —E——FER
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK” or the “Company”), |
hereby present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June
2011.

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$3,124,000, compared with
HK$3,058,000 last year. Loss for the year was HK$2,565,000, compared with loss of HK$2,478,000 last year. As
at 30 June 2011, the Group had bank balances and cash amounting to approximately HK$11,667,000.

e-Commerce has become increasingly important to economic development, and is fast evolving into a
mainstream channel of doing business. Small companies in particular regard e-commerce as an indispensable
tool to survive and rebound in the face of adverse economic conditions. The Group is operating in a dynamic and
ever-evolving industry where new services and business models emerge, and the competitive landscape changes
rapidly. Amidst intensifying market competition, it faces significant challenges on a continuous basis.

At this stage, Digital HK is going through a transitional period as it revamps its business aiming at reaching out to
a more diversified customer base via its infrastructure and enabling solutions. To achieve this goal, the Group will
engage more actively in marketing and promotional activities, and seek collaboration partners to provide more
innovative business solutions.

Going forward, the Board will conduct a detailed review of the operations of the Group with a view to developing
a corporate strategy to broaden its income stream. Subject to the results of the review, the Group may explore
other business opportunities and may consider such business acquisitions as deemed appropriate for the
development of the Group.

On a sad note, Mr. John Wong Yuk Lung, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director since
2000, passed away on 2 July 2011. During his time with us, John always worked with the best interests of the
Group in mind. He brought to the Group his expertise and extensive experience in management. He will be sadly
missed.

Finally, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all members of the Board, staff and those who have

supported us for their hard work and commitment. We also thank our shareholders and other stakeholders for
their continuous support and confidence in the Group.

Paul KAN Man Lok
Chairman

26 August 2011

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM Annual Report 2011



Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
During the year, the Group was principally engaged in
providing customised internet business solutions and services
which offered advice on the integration of various service
offerings for online transactions. Service fees derived from
the Group’s enabling solutions and technical consultation

on e-commerce application customisation was the primary
source of income for the Group.

Consistent with its prudent financial management, the
Group’s spending on new systems and networks, as well as
infrastructure upgrades was strictly in line with the level of
business attained, and its resources were deployed in such a
way as to produce optimum results.

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group’s turnover
remained stable at HK$3,124,000 as compared with
HK$3,058,000 of last year, whereas loss attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$2,565,000 compared with
loss of HK$2,478,000 for the previous year. Loss per share
for the year was HK1.71 cents.

Total operating costs for the year under review increased
slightly to HK$5,698,000 from HK$5,545,000 for the
previous year, mainly attributable to the increase in general
and administrative expenses of 7% to HK$2,296,000 from
HK$2,153,000 for the previous year.

The Group’s financial position remained liquid and positive,
and did not have any bank borrowings as at 30 June 2011.
Operation was primarily financed by internally generated
cashflows.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year. The Group will retain cash to finance the
continuing development of its business as well as prospective
investment opportunities.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$12,095,000, which comprised mainly bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$11,667,000. The
Group had no non-current liabilities, and its current liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$1,016,000, consisting mainly
of payables arising in the normal course of operation.

The Group did not have any bank borrowings as at 30

June 2011. The Group financed its operations primarily

with internally generated cashflows. As at 30 June 2011,

the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities

or charges on its assets. With net current assets of
approximately HK$11,079,000, the Group was in a financially
liquid position at the end of the year under review. The
Group had no borrowings and hence no gearing ratio was
presented. Equity attributable to owners of the Company as
at 30 June 2011 was approximately HK$11,081,000.

The Board considers that the Group’s financial resources

are sufficient for its operation. If necessary, the Board

would consider either debt or equity financing, or both, for
business development, especially when appropriate business
opportunities are identified and market conditions are
favourable.

During the year, the Group made no acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or affiliated companies.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2011, the total amount of the Group’s

capital commitments authorised but not contracted for was
HK$500,000 (2010: HK$500,000). These commitments were
set aside for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
and development of systems and networks.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most
of its transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2011, the Group employed 9 full-time staff
members. Staff costs for the year under review were
HK$3,099,000 (2010: HK$3,008,000). Remuneration

is determined with reference to market terms and the
performance, qualifications, and experience of the individual
employee. Remuneration includes monthly salaries,
performance-linked bonuses, share options, retirement
benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, and
other benefits such as medical scheme.

The Company has established a Human Resources and
Remuneration Committee. In determining the remuneration
of the directors, the committee will consider factors such as
the Company’s operating results, individual performance,
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM Annual Report 2011



Directors and Senior Management Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Paul KAN Man Lok, 64, is the Chairman with responsibility
for Digital HK’s visionary planning and development. He is also
the Chairman and an executive director of both Champion
Technology Holdings Limited (“Champion Technology”), the
Company’s holding company, and Kantone Holdings Limited
(“Kantone”), a fellow subsidiary of the Company, the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”). Dr. Kan holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and an Honorary Doctor of Humane
Letters Degree from the University of Northern Virginia, United
States. He has over 40 years of experience in the computing
and telecommunications industries. Prior to setting up the
Champion Technology group in 1987, he was the general
manager in charge of Asiadata Limited, a computing services
subsidiary of Cable & Wireless PLC.

Dr. Kan has received a number of prestigious awards from
several governments and various local and international
professional bodies in recognition of his contribution to the
community and the industry. Government awards include
Commander of the most Excellent Order of the British
Empire (CBE) by Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth Il (2006);
Commendatore dell’Ordine della Stella della Solidarieta
[taliana by the Italian Prime Minister Hon. Romano Prodi
(2006); the Hong Kong SAR Government’s appointment as a
Justice of the Peace (2006); Chevalier de I'Ordre de la Légion
d’Honneur by the Government of France (2007); and Silver
Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong SAR Government (2009).

Professional awards include Young Industrialist Award (1992);
Hong Kong Business Award-Enterprise Trophy (1993);
Governor’s Award for Hong Kong Industries (1989); Honorary
Fellow of the Academy of Chinese Studies (2005); and
Honorary Professor of Szent Istvan University in Budapest,
Hungary (2011).

In civic duties, Dr. Kan is currently the Honorary Chairman of
the Hong Kong Information Technology Industry Council and
the Chairman of Hong Kong IT Alliance; and a member of
HKSAR Chief Executive Election Committee for the IT sector,
the Council of The Chinese University of Hong Kong, the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Anhui
Province in the PRC, and the Election Committee for the Hong
Kong representatives of National People’s Congress of China.
He served twice on the Exchange Corporate Governance
Working Group during 1994-1995 and 1999-2000, and was
a member of the Listing Committee of the Exchange for the
period 1999-2003. He was the Chairman of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council Information and Communications
Technology Services Advisory Committee (2006-2010) and
ICT Working Group, Hong Kong — United Kingdom Business
Partnership (2004-2007).

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM Annual Report 2011

Dr. Kan had been an independent non-executive director of

CLP Holdings Limited for 9 years from 2001 until he retired in
April 2010. In January 2011, Dr. Kan was appointed Honorary
Consul of the Republic of Hungary in Hong Kong and Macao.

Shirley HA Suk Ling, 55, is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, which she joined in 2000. She is responsible
for overseeing the Group’s business activities including
corporate finance and strategic development. She also
focuses on building strategic partnerships and alliances for
the Group, liaising with government departments, solutions
and business partners, different sectors of the business and
academic communities. Prior to joining the Group, she was
the Executive Vice President of Corporate Development of
Champion Technology which she joined in March 1992, and
oversaw the flotation and corporate development of three
listed companies within the Champion Technology group.

Ms. Ha holds a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the

University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. She
currently is a member of the Personal Data (Privacy) Advisory
Committee of the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for
Personal Data, Hong Kong, Digital 21 Strategy Advisory
Committee, the Assessment Panel for the DesignSmart
Initiative and the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance);
and serves as Mentor under the Mentorship Programme of
the Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation.
She is a General Committee Member of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries and Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong
Information Technology Industry Council, Council Member

of Internet Professional Association and Co-Chairman of
Special Interest Group in Venture Capital and New Business
Development, Senior Member of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council and member of the Hong Kong
Corporate Counsel Association. She is also the Honorary
Secretary of Hungarian — Hong Kong Innovative Business
Council.

Ms. Ha also sits on the boards of Champion Technology and
Kantone as non-executive director.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Leo KAN Kin Leung, 54, has been a non-executive director
since January 2005. He is the Chief Executive Officer and

an executive director of Champion Technology, as well as

a non-executive director of Kantone. He is a brother of Paul
Kan Man Lok, Chairman of the Company. Prior to joining

the Champion Technology group in 1988, Mr. Kan held
management positions in several international companies

in Hong Kong. He holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from Dalhousie University in Canada and a
Master’s degree in Economics from the University of Alberta
in Canada. In 2006, Mr. Kan completed the Oxford Advanced
Management Programme at the Said Business School of the
University of Oxford.



Mr. Kan is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Industry Council. He is also the Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong IT Alliance as well as the Chairman of its IT
Committee. He serves on Internet Professional Association
as Honorary Secretary and a Council Member, and Co-
Chairman of Special Interest Group in Venture Capital and
New Business Development. Mr. Kan is a member of the
Technical Standards Advisory Committee at the Office of
the Telecommunications Authority, the CreateSmart Initiative
Vetting Committee of the Hong Kong SAR Government, the
School of Continuing Education Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Baptist University, the Design Council of Hong
Kong and the Consultative and Advisory Panel of the Hong
Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited. He is also an
Executive Committee Member of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council and a General Committee Member
of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

LAl Yat Kwong, 62, has been a non-executive director
since January 2005. He is the Chief Financial Officer and an
executive director of Champion Technology, and the Chief
Executive Officer (Acting), Chief Financial Officer, as well

as an executive director of Kantone. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and has over 39 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and company secretarial matters. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (Practising).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Francis Gilbert KNIGHT, 81, has been an independent
non-executive director since March 2000. He was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Champion
Technology in February 2000. Mr. Knight is the Chairman
and Managing Director of Asian Security and Investigation
Services Limited. He has over 20 years’ experience in

the field of copyright protection, security and commercial
investigations, and acts as security adviser to a number

of major organisations. Mr. Knight is a member of the
International Association of Police Chiefs and the Hong
Kong Intellectual Property Society; and a fellow of each of
the British Institute of Directors and the British Institute of
Management. He is also a former President of the American
Society for Industrial Security (Hong Kong Branch).

SHAO Xiang Ming, 50, has been an independent non-
executive director since March 2004. She has over 15 years
of experience in biomedical research, Chinese medicine,
and healthcare products. She graduated from No. 3 Military
Medical University in China with a Bachelor’s degree in
medicine in 1985, and a Master’s degree in Pathology
Analysis in 1988. In 2000, she served as a director of the
World Association of Special Medical Treatment. In 2001,
she was appointed as Deputy Executive Officer of Health

and Poverty Relief of The Foundation of Chinese Elementary
Hygiene and Healthcare, responsible for the promotion

of health education and the use of preventive medicine in
villages and communities. Since 2001, she has served as
chief research officer of Beijing East-West Medical Center,
responsible for research and development of bioenergetic
medicine. Information medicine has been Ms. Shao’s medical
research interest for more than 10 years.

Alec HO Yat Wan, 35, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since January

2008. He is also the Chairman of the audit committee of the
Company. He is a director of Billy Ho and Associates CPA
Limited. He is also a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants;

a Certified Information Systems Auditor of the Information
Systems Audit and Control Association; a Certified Information
Technology Professional of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants; and a member of the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor degree
in Accounting from University of Southern California, USA
and a Master degree in Information Systems from Claremont
Graduate University, USA. Mr. Ho has participated in
community services as an executive committee member

of The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society Kowloon, and is

an appointed member of the Civil Celebrant of Marriages
Appointment Appeal Board and several other government
committees.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, 55, has been the Company
Secretary since January 2000. She is a solicitor practising in
Hong Kong. She is also the Company Secretary of Champion
Technology and Kantone.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Robert SIA Chun Chung, 39, is Vice President, e-Commerce
Projects responsible for overseeing the technical management
and systems support of the Group’s e-commerce and Internet
operations. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering

from the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree

in Electronic Engineering from the Polytechnic University of
Hong Kong. He has been with the Champion Technology
group since 1995 before joining the Group in July 1999. He
also serves on the Hong Kong Radio Paging Association

and the Hong Kong IT Alliance as an executive committee
member, and Technical Standards Advisory Committee at
the Office of the Telecommunications Authority as alternate
member.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM Annual Report 2011



Directors’ Report
EFERE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associate are set out
in notes 24 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2011
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 21.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution amounted
to approximately HK$1,228,000 (2010: HK$4,744,000) as

at 30 June 2011. The share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles

of Association and provided that immediately following

the distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
dividends can be distributed out of the profits, special reserve
and share premium of the Company.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok, Chairman

Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling, CEO

Mr. John Wong Yuk Lung (deceased on 2 July 2011)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight

Ms. Shao Xiang Ming

Mr. Alec Ho Yat Wan

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM Annual Report 2011
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DIRECTORS - continued

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung, Mr. Lai Yat Kwong
and Mr. Alec Ho Yat Wan will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Each of the non-executive directors has a service contract
with the Company for a term of up to three years.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
The Company confirms it has received from each of its
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”), and considers that the independent
non-executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group had the
following transactions with Champion Technology Holdings
Limited (“Champion”, the Company’s ultimate holding
company) and Champion Technology Limited (a subsidiary of
Champion) and Y28.com Limited (a subsidiary of Champion),
which are deemed to be connected persons of the Company
under the GEM Listing Rules:

BEE

RIEADT EHSRMAZ T BEEEE RANE
ERAREEEBHEERTEEAS HORET  ¥HE
AR BT -

BREERRBFAS LHHREE ERTMET L ERNAE
BTN —FNBAERHE CEEMBERRIN) ML L2 IR
BH -

BRFATEFRARR LARRER/=ZF ZRBAL -

TR Hm I
AARERCEESB I FRTEERETERARIME
IR AE ([P ) IR EZ LR A (TEIZR LR A
5.0 ZRER BN 2 FEMRL  ARARBA
SZEWUFTERYEBILAL -

EFERSNRAER Sz

BE-Z—— X A=Z1THLFE ARESREFRNE
BERQR([BE]  ARRZHLERRAT)  BEMKRE
BRAR(BEZWBAR) REZEERIF(BEZHER
AT I 225 - RBAER TRV ZRE - ®
SRR RRIBEEAL

HK$’000
FAET

Annual fee and technical fee received from BRERHRAR AR
Champion Technology Limited (Note 1) FEREMmE (KEE1) 36
Technical fee received from Y28.com Limited (Note 1) BESEAR DRI EITE (HE1) 5
Administration fees paid by the Group to Champion (Note 2) A& @E %4 FEE 21T E B (Hizk2) 540

Notes: BRIEE -

1. The Group had provided e-payment platform services to 1. ARERFEEFNRFERBTEEZMBERR - HEZU

subsidiaries of Champion at a fee chargeable with reference to
comparable market price as agreed.

2. The Group had used administrative services provided by
Champion, which charged the Group for such services on cost
basis.

These transactions are exempt continuing connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

BN2EM AR TIHER -

2. AEEERTERMEZITHRY - &R 2 & RRRAELE
R o

I ERZ S TR AIER ETRRBSI R AR RS ERERS
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Directors’ Report
EFEgGEE

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

— continued

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors,
the above transactions were carried out in the ordinary and
usual course of business under normal commercial terms in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. Details of
such connected transactions are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any of

its subsidiaries, including the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2011, the interests and short positions of the
directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant

to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”) pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
the directors of the Company as referred to in Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES - continued

EECEFHERRIRE =

Approximate

percentage Number of
Number of the issued convertible
Name of director Capacity of shares share capital securities
HEBITRAE
EEpnA 54 RHEBE ZBAtE  ABRRESHE
Securities of the Company
AARES
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 1 74.48% —
RS EL S NRER Pt T 1
Securities of Champion
BEXRS
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 2 26.88% Note 2
RS EL S NRER Pzt 2 M2
Securities of Kantone Holdings Limited
(“Kantone”, a subsidiary of Champion)
EESEARAT
(TBR] BEZHBAR) RS
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 3 54.26% -
RISCEESE AR Pzt 3
Notes: Bt
1. 106,050,000 shares of the Company were held by Champion 1. N A A 2 106,050,000 R D BB ERHF B AR A

and 5,670,520 shares of the Company were held by Lawnside
International Limited (“Lawnside”). Lawnside is beneficially
wholly owned by Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok. As at 30 June 2011,
Lawnside had interests in approximately 26.88% of the entire
issued share capital of Champion. Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok

was deemed to have corporate interest in the shares of the
Company owned by Champion and Lawnside.

2. 1,617,111,835 shares of Champion were held by
Lawnside. Lawnside also held a convertible redeemable
bond of Champion with outstanding principal amount of
HK$64,340,548.67 carrying the right to convert the principal
amount of the bond or any part thereof into shares of
Champion up to 19 September 2011 at the conversion price
per share of the higher of (i) HK$0.70 (after adjustment on 7
January 2011 as a result of a rights issue of Champion); and (i)
the volume-weighted average price of shares of Champion for
the 10 dealing days ending on the day immediately preceding
the date of a relevant conversion notice multiplied by a factor
of 0.8. The bond has not been taken into account in calculating
the percentage of the issued share capital of Champion held
by Lawnside.

3. 4,065,783,235 shares of Kantone were held by Champion.

25,670,520% #% 15 Bl fhLawnside International Limited
([Lawnside ) #% - Lawnside R X &4 A B2 EHA -
MNZZT——FA=1+H " Lawnside HEETE 2 LD HITIK
AN 26.88% 2 #Eas o N EEAMERARZEATER
Lawnside # B 2 AN A RIRD R B A Bz ©

2. 78 E 2 1,617,111,835 % i {5 H3 Lawnside 5 & ° Lawnside 71
BB M ARITE A S 585 64,340,548.67 B T MY AHEFI AT A =
T——FAATNBAZREFABHASELRATERMD
ZREARRAELES  ARZEREREATIIMEZ
Bma () 0708 T(ERTEHRBRR -_T——F—ALBH
) RIEERNREEZFELABABHIHEXSAEZ
RAREMEFHEIRL0.8 © £ 5+ E Lawnside 5 A @ F %
TR Z b R B A M ot T BB S -

3. FEiR2 4,005,783,235 BRI AEEFH ©

BREE B —FFH

11



12

Directors’ Report
EFEgGEE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES - continued
Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in
Part XV of the SFO) as at 30 June 2011 as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings
by the directors of the Company as referred to in Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at 30 June 2011, the following person (other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the share capital or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

EFECEGHGRNRE -~

B EXPAEEEIN R ——FRXA=Z T HRAQRIRE
EH KB GRS 352 1R FE Z BRRABMER - SR
BIER LR B4 GAMBARBERETEE ZER
REMARRRBRZAATIEL 2B ARREEHITH
REMBEARTIEBRZR (ERREFRPEGRMSE
XVED) ZBtn ~ MERARD BT A TR IOAR

EERE

RoB——FXA=+A  BARTREES RS IS
3T EZRBEAMDEAT - FHAL(RAREER
TR SN B A 2 AR AR SRR 2 i AR

Percentage

Long/short Number of the issued

Name of shareholder position Capacity of shares share capital

HEBITRAE

RREBE "E /KA 4 RHHE ZH=

Champion Long Beneficial owner 106,050,000* 70.7%

& e Enlia A

* See Note 1 to the “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in * 2 [ES2EFHER AR | —&ME -

Securities” Section.

Save as disclosed above, no person had any interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June 2011.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 30 June 2011
and there had been no exercise of any convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

On 29 November 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) which will expire on 28 November
2012. No option has been granted by the Company under
the Scheme. Particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM Annual Report 2011

B EXFREEIN  R-T——FAA=1A  BARAR
IRAE 5 I 1R 6 336 16607 B 2 AR TR TSR FT S - 4%
EAALHAER TR SRRIBG 2 B Rk A -

;gg?&%ﬁﬁ\ﬂﬁmﬂg\E%Eﬂgﬁﬂﬁﬁiw

RZZB——FRXA=+H  ARRBEAER EARITEE 2 AT
Mg - A - RRUEE S M BALUER] - BFRIETT
BRI AT HRARRE 75 - BB - SR RE SR LR -

Eﬁﬂ#ﬂ&i?ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁz

RZZEE-—F+—A=-+NB  ARBEM—EBEN_-Z
——F+—AZ+NBERZEREE([5E]]) - AQF]
WEREA EIR B AR EE - B E 2 FBENGREH
TEMEMEE18 °



SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES - continued

On 29 November 2002, each of Champion and Kantone
adopted a share option scheme which enables the directors
of Champion and Kantone respectively to grant options to any
directors, employees or consultants of Champion, Kantone
and their respective affiliates as well as their respective
customers and suppliers to subscribe for shares of Champion
and Kantone respectively. The purpose of the share option
schemes is to attract and retain quality personnel and other
persons and to provide incentive to them to contribute to

the business and operation of Champion and Kantone. The
option period shall be determined by its directors which shall
not be more than ten years from the date of grant of the
option. The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the shares; (i) the closing price per share as stated
in the Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant
of the options which must be a business day; and (jii) the
average closing price per share as stated in the Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately
proceeding the date of grant of the option. No option has
been granted by Champion and Kantone since the adoption
of their schemes, which will expire on 28 November 2012.

Other than the share option schemes described above, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the directors or their spouses or children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 99.9% of the turnover of the
Group and the largest customer of the Group accounted for
about 94.3% of the total turnover.

None of the directors, their respective associates or
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of

the directors own more than 5% of the issued capital of the
Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers
of the Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2011.

For the year ended 30 June 2011, no party has been
classified as a supplier of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issue shares as required under
the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, none of the directors, the controlling
shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) or their respective associates had any business or
interest which competed or might compete with the business
of the Group nor had any other conflict of interest with the
Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration for the employees of the Group is
determined with reference to market terms and the
performance, qualifications and experience of the individual
employee.

In determining the emoluments of the directors of the
Company, the Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee of the Company will consider factors such as the
Company’s operating results, individual performance, salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees. Details of the
scheme are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Paul KAN Man Lok
CHAIRMAN

26 August 2011
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELSHRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
set out in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) in
the year ended 30 June 2011.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms set out in the
standard of dealings contained in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules (the “Standard of Dealings”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, and they have confirmed compliance with the
Standard of Dealings during the year ended 30 June 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of

the Company. The directors are collectively responsible

for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board set strategies and
directions for the Group’s activities with a view to developing
its business and enhancing shareholders value.

EREIER

ARARBOERFERFZEEER -RBE-T——F XA
=TRLEFER ARARIEETEEBBARXSAERQFE
FRES EWARA (TR ETRR DS REE RS
BRI (Ts7RI)) Pz PRS-

EFNESXS

AFERFAIFR EHRAF 6482 6.67 RMENR S
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SN — BB TR -

ARFREAARBZRESFLFESH  MEEZHICH

RRBE-_Z——FRA=ZTHIEFERNGEETR L
*m£°

EEE

ZK AXEEY (B )BT REARREGRESTA
AE - EERERTLEEASEZE \H&AE\ZIX%I

BRAKY - BEEEHRIAREXBE 2RBERT R - EX%E
IAB R R SR TR R B (E -

The Board held 5 meetings during the year ended 30 June EFelNEBE_T——F A=+ HIEERERITs S
2011. Its composition and the attendance of individual 2o HAREEESEENREETe e 7 HEBRET
directors at these board meetings were as follows: mE
Number of
meetings held
during the Number of
director’s term meetings
of office attended
RESES FrifE
Name ®H BT ZEBINRY BBRY
Executive directors HITES
Paul KAN Man Lok (Chairman) X4 (FE) 5 5
Shirley HA Suk Ling (Chief Executive Officer) BRL (17548 %,) 5 5
John WONG Yuk Lung* ELfE 5 5
Non-executive directors FHTES
Leo KAN Kin Leung** FHER R ** 5 5
LAl Yat Kwong 3B 5 5
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT Francis Gilbert KNIGHT 5 5
SHAQ Xiang Ming B! 5 5
Alec HO Yat Wan fTRE 5 5
* Mr. John WONG Yuk Lung deceased on 2 July 2011. * BEBEEENRZTE——F LA AN -
- Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung is a brother of Mr. Paul KAN Man Lok. - LEISS AP E Solpd
HIHEE —E——FFH
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are segregated, with a clear division of
responsibilities.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for
setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Through the Board, he is responsible for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are followed
by the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors of the Company are appointed
for a term of up to 3 years ending on the date on which the
director shall retire by rotation at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with the Code and the Articles
of Association of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) has 5 members, comprising Mr.
Leo KAN Kin Leung and Mr. LAl Yat Kwong (non-executive
directors); and Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT, Mr. Alec HO Yat
Wan and Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming (independent non-executive
directors). The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr.
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow
the guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for,
among other things, making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy for the remuneration of directors
and senior management.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings and work performed includes
reviewing the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive
directors and senior management and their levels of
remuneration. All members attended these meetings.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee has 4 members, comprising

Mr. Paul KAN Man Lok (executive director); and Mr. Francis
Gilbert KNIGHT, Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan and Ms. SHAO Xiang
Ming (independent non-executive directors). This Committee
is chaired by Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
potential new directors and making recommendations to

the Board for decision. A director appointed by the Board

is subject to re-election by shareholders at the first annual
general meeting after his/her appointment. All directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
one third of the directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at each annual general
meeting of the Company.

Potential new directors are selected on the basis of their
qualifications, skills and experience which the Nomination
Committee considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

No new director was nominated for appointment during the
year ended 30 June 2011.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year
ended 30 June 2011 and work performed includes reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors of
the Company. All members attended these meetings.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the accounts of the Company. As at 30 June 2011, the
directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial
statements of the Company on a going-concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their
financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report attached to the Company’s Financial Statements for
the year ended 30 June 2011.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT — continued
The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system with an aim to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets in
compliance with the provisions of the Code. The purpose is
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the
Group’s business objectives.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the fee for the Company’s
external auditors for audit services was HK$459,000 (2010:
HK$459,000) and that for non-audit services mainly relating
to taxation matters and other services was HK$41,000 (2010:
HK$39,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has 5 members, comprising Mr. Leo
KAN Kin Leung and Mr. LAl Yat Kwong (non-executive
directors); and Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan, Mr. Francis Gilbert
KNIGHT and Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming (independent non-
executive directors). The Chairman of this Committee is Mr.
Alec HO Yat Wan.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the
guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among
other things, reviewing the Group’s financial information and
its financial reporting and internal control system.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Audit Committee
held 4 meetings and work performed includes reviewing
the Group’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results and
its internal control system. All members attended these
meetings.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BIXBENR S

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements

of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set

out on pages 21 to 50, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2011, and

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary

to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

HBIRERILRR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
I BEh RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY — continued
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30
June 2011 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 August 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEERElaR

For The Year Ended 30 June 2011 HE—ZT——FXA=1+HIFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’'000
b FHxT FHBT
Turnover - 6 3,124 3,058
Other income =L PN 7 9 9
General and administrative expenses —M AT (2,296) (2,158)
Marketing and promotion expenses MZHEES L (303) (384)
Staff costs BB A (3,099) (3,008)
Loss before taxation BB A 18 (2,565) (2,478)
Taxation | 9 = -
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEEHER
for the year attributable to owners RAREEE A
of the Company Eh2mE B 4% 10 (2,565) (2,478)

Loss per share — basic

FREE - EX

11

HK(1.71) cents &l

HK(1.65) cents#1ll

BREB

—B——FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RaEMBERKAR

At 30 June 2011 RZ-ZE——FA=+H

2011 2010
———% —r—Tf
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
BdsE FExT T
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B KEE 12 2 3
Interest in an associate L NI 13 - =
2 3
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 K H A58 14 404 3,946
Amount due from a fellow e IEEY N EPNG
subsidiary Z5RIE 15 24 27
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRIRS 16 11,667 10,694
12,095 14,667
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables JE A~ B 5RIE 1,013 1,018
Amount due to a fellow e —ER R B A A
subsidiary Z5RIE 15 3 6
1,016 1,024
Net current assets MENEEFE 11,079 13,643
Net assets BEFRE 11,081 13,646
Capital and reserves BARHE
Share capital R AR 17 15,000 15,000
Reserves s (3,919) (1,354)
Equity attributable to RAREB A
owners of the Company FE(RRE = 11,081 13,646

The consolidated financial statements on pages 21 to 50
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 26 August 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

PAUL KAN MAN LOK fi37 £
DIRECTOR &%

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM Annual Report 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FERFERBHE

For The Year Ended 30 June 2011 BE-—T——&F X XA=1HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARATHEE AEM
Share Capital Share Accumulated

capital reserve premium losses Total

;& EREE IR 1E ZitE#R FEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHIT T FHIT FHIT

At 1 July 2009 RZEZNF+EA—AH 15,000 7,540 8,461 (14,877) 16,124
Loss and total comprehensive 7<% € 718 &k 2

expense for the year T HiEsE — — — (2,478) (2,478)

At 30 June 2010 RZE—ZFFA=1+H 15,000 7,540 8,461 (17,355) 13,646
Loss and total comprehensive ZAN4E[ZEE R 2 HE

expense for the year S HsaEE — — — (2,565) (2,565)

At 30 June 2011 RZE——FA=1+H 15,000 7,540 8,461 (19,920) 11,081

The capital reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company
and the fair value allocated to the separable net assets of the

subsidiaries at the date of acquisition arisen from a group

reorganisation in March 2000.

HIREE

ENREER _ETTF-AZEEEAARBMETHRA
EE LK AR A 88 EF RN R B AR 2 A BE
&2

e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FaRenER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2011 #HZE—ZT——

FRA=ZTHRLEFE

2011 2010
e —z-24
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Operating activities KBTS
Loss before taxation BRELAIES1E (2,565) (2,478)
Adjustments for: PR -
Interest income FEWA (1) (@)
Depreciation of property, Y% - BB REE
plant and equipment Z2hE 1 8
Operating cash flows before movements in EBECHEP L LE
working capital BEM (2,565) (2,474)
Decrease (increase) in trade and FEUE 5 K M FIE 2
other receivables B (3 ) 3,542 (1,323
Decrease (increase) in amount due R —HEREMNBRARRIELZ
from a fellow subsidiary A (35 0) 3 ©)
Decrease in other payables R E M RIE 2R (5) (38)
Decrease in amount due to EN—HEREMNBRARREL
a fellow subsidiary VR (3) 6)
Net cash generated from (used in) AT (FTR) 2
operating activities REFH 972 (3,843)
Investing activities HEEE)
Interest received B E 1 4
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment BEME  WE MR - (€]
Net cash from investing activities RETBME 2R FE 1 1
Net increase (decrease) in cash and ReRBEFHEL
cash equivalents #ICRA) F58 973 (3,842)
Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year FzReRReEE 10,694 14,536
Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year, represented FEZRERIREERE
by bank balances and cash BIERITAERER® 11,667 10,694

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG EME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2011 BE-—T——&F X XA=1HILFE

GENERAL 1. —iBEFH

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands AATIERSHERERSHERKEITARNETMAK
as an exempted company with limited liability under the N EBERRERAT  EROHESEHARSFAER
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and ANa)([BAFr]) 28R (TAIER]) £ EER K
its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market BHEERATATERIEE .ﬁ[ﬁ FABE]) - &
(the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong FEAARBESEESIMK I AT HEEEB G
Limited (the “Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate WEEAHEE - ﬁﬂ;ﬁﬁ@ﬂgﬁﬁﬁﬁ}ﬁiiﬁ B /NG|
holding company is Champion Technology Holdings AN EEREELSE M U ERNFERACESR
Limited (“Champion”), a company which was originally =—EIrRIvEE -

incorporated in the Cayman Islands but subsequently

re-domiciled to Bermuda, and its shares are listed on

the Main Board of the Exchange. The addresses of the

registered office and principal place of business of the

Company are disclosed in the Corporation Information

section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in FAMBRETUEBITET  MAETHAEERATZY
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional ek o

currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The ARATAB—EIREIZRAT - EfB AT REE AT
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associate are TEBEKRD D RIEHNHIEE24 K13 ©

set out in notes 24 and 13 respectively.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND 2. HPREETEEMBERETER

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied a number
of new and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”), amendments and Interpretations (“new and
revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are
mandatorily effective for accounting periods beginning
on 1 July 2010.

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has
had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods.

([FRMBEREEDN]) ZHR

RAFE  AEECRAHEES quEﬂi"A(f%/’é’\
SRR ) ARGR T —FF LA — EIEﬁﬁAZ
HM R LR B TR BT EESR /‘iﬁ‘J(F%
= U] ‘1I%ET$&:@%$(F%)TJ&%&{%T%S/%M
BEREAER]) -

RNZEH R MERT BB BREENHAEER
eitiERBTEEH PR FAEMBREL RS A
& o

HIREE =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMEREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2011

2.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

ADOPTION OF NEW AND

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) — continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010°

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosures — Transfers of
financial assets'

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial
statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in
other entities?

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement?

Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income*
Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets®
Employee benefits?

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 24 (Revised 2009)  Related party disclosures'

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)  Separate financial statements?

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)  Investments in associates and
joint ventures?

HK(FRIC)-INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum

(Amendments) funding requirement!

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis and in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Exchange and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

All'intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate
are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interest in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals

or exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

3. ¥EEHBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMEREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2011

3.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Interest in an associate — continued

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s interest
in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to
sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of

the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Service income is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Annual Report 2011
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Computer system and equipment 20% — 33'/5%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMEREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2011

3.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, amount due from a fellow subsidiary,
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments
and an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in

a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses were
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised

cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences

a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies in
respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through

the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables and amount
due to a fellow subsidiary are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income and expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation

of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to

the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on the tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates

to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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3.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,

the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
item, are recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Annual Report 2011

HE_T——FRA=THLFE

3.

FEEMHBE -«

B

MNBERTER - ARERSEEE ZREEATE
SRR TAEEEXIIRERR BREEZ
AREeBEEFTAOREEREE  ZEERAEREER
A E SR o RER IR R AR -

BREBBRERER ZEEZREESEEHLLE
Rl EETATIRE SR8 - HAREE Z NN BB
ZEEMBEFEYEELREBRERMEE 2K
EE - BEEE 2 O BEREENER AUA -

g

NRESESEEER M BRER - AZEBIEE
BEBLINZEE (INE) BT 2R HBRR 5 B 28
RERSRE SR E (IR ERCLEmELE
EPERGE 2 G it sk - NIEHTHER - AINET
Bz EWIRR YR 2 EREREHRE -

HEERERRBRESRERRMEANELZRS
FEAPTE £ AR e I8 s HERR o

RAREF A
EREREARFTEZFERBTIREZRBCHAE
RERHEREERF S -



CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. BERISEM
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AREFSTEHER  UBREAEEARNESTEIGEEHIA
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern SEQE T LT AN EREEAEHEHEBAY &
while maximising the return to shareholders through EEEMmARE S SEHR o ANEE Y B ERKE
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The TEBE— -
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of equity REBZEAEEBEANTHEE AELEZ (RS
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising AT - R R B EHEEARK) ©
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated losses.
The directors of the Company review the capital AATIEEGIEERNERLERE - (EASH2 —IF
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this S BEeEEEANKNARZRAER ZBERE -
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and BIEEE V@S AEFEBBEERTEHRG - BIER
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based D REEATHE AT S AR i o
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. &@MIRA
Categories of financial instruments SR T EER
2011 2010
—g——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables BER K EWFRIA
(including bank balances and cash) (BRERTEHREES) 11,964 14,540
Financial liabilities ERAE
Amortised cost [SE: 5PN 1,016 1,024

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, amount due from/to a fellow subsidiary,
bank balances and cash, and other payables. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances.

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to

trade receivables, the management of the Group will
only advance credit to customers with good credit
history. In addition, the management reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the

end of the reporting period, taking into account of
future discounted cash flows, to ensure that adequate

impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Credit risk is concentrated to a small number of
debtors. However, the management considers, based
on the good credit history and the long term business
relationship with the debtor, there is no significant
credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is minimal as such

amounts are placed in banks with good reputation in
Macau and Hong Kong.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continved 5,
Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Certain
trade receivables and bank balances of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group does
not engage in any foreign currency hedging activities.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
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The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign AEBREEINEHEY SR EENRESAEE

currency denominated monetary assets at the reporting HEMT
date are as follows:
Assets
BE

2011 2010

—E——fF —T—TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

United State dollars (“US$”) EI(E); 129 876

Macao Pataca BT 164 111

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign
currency risk from US$. Under the pegged exchange
rate system, the financial exposure on exchange

rate fluctuation between HK$ and US$ is considered
insignificant by the directors. The directors of the
Company consider the Group’s exposure to currency
risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity
analysis has been prepared.
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HE_T——FRA=THLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — contived 5. ST H — =
Financial risk management objectives BEEREEEEREE — 4
and policies — continued
Liquidity risk TEESE R
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group AEBRBESRR  AEEBRE NS SHER
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash RGN EBERATH I KE  BAREEZ X£7K12
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to HELREMES TS I E -
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRIINAEB 2 2REBBERT 26 OFIHIFES - 3%
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table RIOBEBEAERESNREZEBH 25 B8 &R
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash SRR o
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay.
Total Carrying
On 1-3 undiscounted amount at
demand months cash flows 30 June 2011
RUHE R-F——F
B&R KNA=TH
RERMEE 1£3EA B ZAREE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET THET FTHET
At 30 June 2011 R=-—T——F
ANA=+H
Other payables RS H AR - 1,013 1,013 1,013
Amount due to a fellow P — AR R BT
subsidiary ARIFRIEA & - 3 3
3 1,013 1,016 1,016
Total Carrying
On 1-3 undiscounted amount at
demand months cash flows 30 June 2010
AWE R-T-TF
Bemw ANA=TH
RERER 1ZE318AR #E ZPRmEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT TR THET THT
At 30 June 2010 S Y
ANA=+H
Other payables FEAT E Ath kT8 — 1,018 1,018 1,018
Amount due to a fellow P — AR R BT
subsidiary ARIFRIA 6 — 6 6
6 1,018 1,024 1,024
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued
Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flows
analysis using prices or rates from observable current
market transactions as input.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

No analysis of fair value measurements is presented as
the Group does not have financial instruments that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value
in the consolidated financial statements.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Turnover represents the amounts received and
receivable for services rendered in establishing and
providing secure electronic payment processing
platform.

The Group’s operating activities are attributable to a
single operating segment focusing on development and
operation of payment infrastructure which facilitates
web-enabled transactions in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), including Hong Kong and Macau.
This operating segment has been identified on the
basis of internal management reports prepared in
accordance with accounting policies conforming to
HKFRSs, that are regularly reviewed by the directors of
the Company. The directors of the Company regularly
review the Group’s turnover and overall results of

the Group as a whole for the purpose of resources
allocation. Accordingly, no analysis of this single
operating segment is presented.

Segment revenues and results

The financial information presented to the directors
is consistent with the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. The directors consider the
Group’s profit for the year as the measurement of
segment’s results.

Entity-wide disclosures

All non-current assets of the Group are located and
revenue are generated in the PRC. For the year ended
30 June 2011, there was one customer with revenue of
HK$2,945,000 (2010: HK$2,948,000) which accounted
for more than 10% of the Group’s turnover.

OTHER INCOME

Included in other income is interest income of
HK$1,000 (2010: HK$4,000).
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2011

8.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ Emoluments

HE_T——FRA=THLFE

8. EFXfieREAME

EEME

Year ended 30 June 2011 BE-ZE——F A NA=1HLEE
Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefits Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
HeR HRR BB =
e Hi3gH HE%S bE [EE MemE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
TER TERT TER TER TERT
(Note)
(Bf3E)
Name of executive directors HITEZHES
Paul Kan Man Lok 30 4 - 114 - 6 120
John Wong Yuk Lung ERRE - 121 - - 121
Shirley Ha Suk Ling BRR - 836 382 12 1,230
Name of non-executive directors ~ JEE{TE =4
Leo Kan Kin Leung EES 10 18 - - 28
Lai Yat Kwong RBK 10 18 - - 28
Francis Gilbert Knight Francis Gilbert Knight 30 50 - - 80
Shao Xiang Ming AR I A 30 50 - - 80
Alec Ho Yat Wan RE 30 50 - - 80
110 1,257 382 18 1,767
Year ended 30 June 2010 BEe—T-—TESXA=+HILEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
ek KRB RIRARR £
ik E AR B S it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET BT FHET FET
(Note)
(BtE)
Name of executive directors WITEZHEA
Paul Kan Man Lok D€ - 114 - 6 120
John Wong Yuk Lung BELRE — 120 - — 120
Shirley Ha Suk Ling 2R — 850 380 12 1,242
Name of non-executive directors ~ JEHI{TE =4
Leo Kan Kin Leung HER 10 18 - - 28
Lai Yat Kwong BAX 10 18 - — 28
Francis Gilbert Knight Francis Gilbert Knight 30 50 = = 80
Shao Xiang Ming AR mI A 30 50 - - 80
Alec Ho Yat Wan kE 30 50 - — 80
110 1,270 380 18 1,778

Note: The performance related incentive payment is

discretionary and decided by the board of directors.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

Annual Report 2011

i MTERRBREEMEESWIFERE -



DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 8. EXMeREEME -~
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

— continued

Employees’ Emoluments EEMS

During both years, the five highest paid individuals RAEEEN AZReFALTEBE R (—E—F
include one (2010: one) director whose emoluments F:—RB)EE HMESEHITERH0 E  SNE
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The total MMEZ(ZE—TF : OZ) AL 2MEEZEEIBHT -

emoluments paid to the remaining four (2010: four)
individuals were as follows:

2011 2010
S T2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Salaries and other benefits e R EAEF] 1,163 1,079
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RGBT B3R 40 40
1,203 1,119
Number of employees
EEAH
2011 2010
—E——F —T—ZF
The emoluments were within EBEZMENT
the following band: T E
Nil — HK$1,000,000 #& — 1,000,000 7T 4 4

BREB —EB——FFH
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2011

BE_ZT——F R A=THLFE

9. TAXATION 9. MIA
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made REFEAREEE ﬂqt’jﬂﬂ\ﬁgﬁﬁjﬁ%lj N S E
as the Group did not have assessable profit in both R BN SR Bt
years.
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the AREEZHRIES HESFNGEE E2ERSR ZEEBHER
loss per the consolidated statement of comprehensive N
income as follows:
2011 2010
—B——fF T —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation FRA% AT B 1R (2,565) (2,478)
Tax credit at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEBNEHRE16.5%
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (ZZ—ZF : 16.5%)
FTHEZTIBER (423) (409)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes TERBRES HZ BT E 52 8
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purposes RRAZ B2 (40) (41)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERTL BB 2 i & 411 442
Taxation for the year REEF 2B = -
=
10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. FFEEBR
2011 2010
—E——fF T -TF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FAT
Loss for the year has been arrived AEEFEEDR ¢
at after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEMEN & 459 459
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #7% - k& &5 E 2 ITE 1 8
Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises REEYECERER Y 66 66
Research and development costs, HRRFAZRA - BIEET
including staff costs of HK$1,007,000 FX75 1,007,000 % 7T
(2010: HK$906,000) (ZZ—Z4F : 906,000757T) 1,038 961
11. LOSS PER SHARE 11. BEKREGR

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

The calculation of the loss per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$2,565,000 (2010: HK$2,478,000) and on the
number of 150,000,000 (2010: 150,000,000) shares in
issue throughout the year.

No dilutive loss per share is presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue for 2011 and 2010.
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

12. Y15% - R R s

Computer Furniture
system and and
equipment fixtures Total
E BN
SEL BRREE B
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHT
COST %N
At 1 July 2009 RZTZENF+LA—H 759 8 767
Addition NE 8 — 3
At 30 June 2010 and R-ZZE—ZFXA=+HE
30 June 2011 —E——FXHA=1H 762 8 770
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 July 2009 RZZENF+LA—H 751 8 759
Provided for the year REEZEHE 8 — 8
At 30 June 2010 RZZE—ZFFA=1H 759 8 767
Provided for the year NEZ RS 1 — 1
At 30 June 2011 R=-ZB——FxA=1+H 760 8 768
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 June 2011 R=-ZE——FXxA=1+H 2 - 2
At 30 June 2010 RZT—ZFA=+H 3 — 3
13. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 13. R—HBIELFICHEES
2011 2010
—E——fF —ZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Unlisted investment at cost FE_ETIRE AN 31 31
Impairment loss recognised EERZBEEE (31) (31)

BREB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMEREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2011 HE—ZT——FXA=1+HIFE

13. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 13. P—HIBEELAFIZRE -+
— continued
Particulars of the Group’s associate at 30 June 2010 REEBR-Z—ZBER-_FT——FENA=1THZHE
and 2011 are as follows: NRFEET :

Proportion of
nominal value of

Form of issued share capital
business Place of indirectly held
Name of company structure incorporation by the Company Principal activity
NN SE: S
BEERITRA
NGRS EREBEN B 3L 3 B H{EZ 5 FEEK
Belcher Technology Incorporated Samoa 40% Provision of software
Limited FEMACSL fEEE e consultation and the
development of
software systems
R B ARS
LEEESH RS
Impairment loss was recognised based on the REBBREBRE AR 2 Al E S ERER - M
estimated recoverable amount of the associate which &t Pl U Bl & BE T AR IR FZ 0 = 2 B < TRORIBRIRIR & 7
was determined by projected discounted cash flows EE -
from the associate.
14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14. Bt S R EMFRIA
2011 2010
—E——F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Trade receivables (Note) W E 5 aE (HiEE) 273 3,819
Other receivables JEUS E I8 131 127
404 3,946
Note: PR EE -
The Group allows an average credit period of 180 days for its AEERBEHEZIEEZEERFE  REUEERTBERM
trade customers depending on their credit worthiness, nature BT FHEB1S0BZEEH - RIS TARRESEZA
of services and conditions of the market. The aging analysis of ZEWE SRIERERSTAT ¢
trade receivables based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
2011 2010
=F——F =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FHT
0 - 60 days 0ZE60H 273 726
61— 120 days 61Z=120H ) 771
181 — 365 days 1812365 H - 2,322
273 3,819
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14.

15.

16.

17.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
— continued

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s
finance and sales management team would assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits attributable to customers are
reviewed regularly with reference to past settlement
history. All of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have the best credit history
attributable under the Company’s management.

In the prior year, included in the Group’s trade
receivables are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$2,322,000 (2011: nil) which were past
due as at the reporting date for which the Group had
not provided for impairment loss. No impairment was
made as the management considers the good credit
history and long term business relationship with this
debtor.

Aging of trade receivables which were past due but not
impaired:

14. BRSREMKRIER - =

EEMEMHELA  AREUBEMHEEREGS
FEEEEFPZERER  UEEREPZEER - &K
PREEHRE2EREAERLEMEHETERN - £
ARBEET » FRERBHECREEZEEE S50
BHARFEELS -

RNEBEFE AEERREZFAREREAE
2,322,000 L (=T ——%: &) ARRE BB Y
2B MARE L ARG (R EE R o B
EHEEZ R EILESAZRRAEBERMEBAR
RIFEELS - B BAELREREE -

EBMERNREZ BEEHHRIAZRRNOT

2011 2010

—g——% —2-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

R Tisi

181 - 365 days 181 %365 H = 2,322

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO A FELLOW
SUBSIDIARY

The amount was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and cash carried interest at an
average rate of 0.013% (2010: 0.015%).

15. Bl "B —HMEARMELATZ
IR

FZRETEER R AREERER -

B

B

16. BITHREERA SR
RITEBR IR SR FHFNERB00IBE(ZZT—ZTF :
0.015[F )&t & °

SHARE CAPITAL 17. B®X
2011 & 2010
—E2——FR
T -TF
HK$'000
Fi&T
Authorised: VETE
800,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each 800,000,000 & = A& EIE 0.10 T 2 & (5 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAT
150,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each 150,000,000 & Z I E1E 0.10 78 7T Z B& 17 15,000
There were no changes in the Company’s authorised, RERAMEFEA - NARZEAE - BEBEITRARK
issued and fully paid share capital in both years. AL EEE) o
BIEEB —E——FER
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2011

18.

19.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 November 2002, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”). The purpose of the
Scheme is to attract and to retain quality personnel
and other persons and to provide them with incentive
to contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. Under the Scheme, the directors may grant
options to any eligible persons of the Group, including
directors, employees, consultants, advisors in respect
of business, operation, management, technology, legal,
accounting and financial matters of the Company, its
subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include the aforesaid persons or a
company beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons
as well as customers and suppliers of the Group, to
subscribe for shares of the Company. Options granted
are exercisable for a period of up to ten years from the
date of grant of the option as decided by the board.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option under the Scheme is equal to

the highest of (i) the nominal value of share; (i) the
closing price per share as stated in the Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day and (jii) the average
closing price per share as stated in the Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which the options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of
approval of the Scheme. However, the total maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding share options must not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any one grantee in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. No option
under the Scheme has been granted by the Company
since its adoption.

UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED
TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$20,109,000
(2010: HK$17,619,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. These tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Annual Report 2011

HE_T——FRA=THLFE

18.

19.

ARz Rt &

REZZBZE-F+—RA-+ThB  ARAHFA—IAER
REETEI([51E]]) < 51812 BNERNBRMA KRB EES A
SREMAL  BUARBRERAEB ZEBREE
EHERL - REBF S EFARARBEFNSERA
T — BREIRARAE  HNBRARHBERRZE
%Bo2gE BE Rt AR S RMBEECE
= ER  ERE &#A 0 EANEIZABRREIM
PRATHEERES 2 AR ZERET - UREE
BzEPRHER — BTERE  BRERBEAL
A2 o TR 2 BREATRNES G A E < i
(BB L A & Z +F) AT °

SHEIN 2 BERET T B (RTRFZRT BIRT A T oA R ) A ()
RROEE ()RR L A H (WARREXER)
RS B RER TR 2 & AR (B 3 (i) E R L B AR
BRI R EE R B AR SR MERMRZ Sk
RO FHRTHE  K=FZ&SE/E - REEIH
Rz BTS2 B 8B LR SHBEA AR
WAt EIHLE R B 2 EEITRA10% i - FITEAT
BARITEBIER A T 217 2 IO A2 LR AT SE
HAR R NEE ZEITRAZ80% ° FEAREAR B KR
ERMET  NER—FAREME —ARARLE
B A S Bz B (D BB TSR AN R B0 % H R AR
REAZEZETROEE 21% - A7 8RN
PABR L ARARIR AT B B ARHE -

RREHTER  A5EXAPACHEBEROA
20,109,000/ 7L (=& —F4F : 17,619,000/ 7T) * A]
IR R AR T - AR TRETRRI R R ZEFIER » 8
WEERIEETIBEE - ILEH TEEE ] EREEE -



20. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

21.

The Group as lessee
Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases
during the period:

20. EEHERIE

AEBEREBEA
MRREGERECNRERENR

2011 2010

—E——F —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET T

Premises L ES 66 66

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
in rented premises under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

NBEHZER  RETIRELEEE  A5EH
EMFEZRREERENFEERHRNT

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Within one year 1FR 33 66
In the second to fifth year inclusive FOFEFESFNRN - 33
33 99
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 21. BEKIE
2011 2010
—E——F T -TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Capital expenditure in respect of
the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, development BEYE - BERLHE
of systems and networks authorised A RBBRE 2 BER
but not contracted for EERFTNERRY 500 500
BIEE B —E——FFR

47



48

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMEREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2011

22.

23.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Employees employed by the Group’s operations

in Macau are members of government-managed
retirement benefits schemes operated by the Macau
government. The Macau operations are required to pay
a monthly fixed contribution to the retirement benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the Macau government is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

The Group enrolled all eligible employees in Hong
Kong into a mandatory provident fund (the “MPF”)
scheme. The retirement benefit cost for the MPF
scheme charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents contributions to the
MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the MPF scheme.

During the year, retirement benefits scheme
contributions paid amounted to approximately
HK$59,000 (2010: HK$59,000).

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

During the year, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties:

HE_T——FRA=THLFE

22.

23.

R FaaFIRTE
ARBRORPISE 2 $ISHI R R BRPIRF R
2 B ERRIVERIS B2 A - RPIEHAR AR
RGEFIS B B Bl BRRFIEE - &
£ B SR PI BRI 2 AR R 82 0 — BT AR
It IR AT R AL -

AEEZBRBR AR EREEZMERHIEAT
& ([BEE )3 - BESE S 2 BINBMEA - A
AEEZRES R APTEEL R 2 H#3  ERER
SEERERANE

FA - ERKEREEIHEKAR69,0008TT(=F

—= 4 : 50,000 7T) °

WEALHE

i AREGEWEADETTIIRS

2011 2010
—T——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T T
Annual fee and technical fee received BRZEMBARWEZ F&

from fellow subsidiaries M E 41 40

Administration fees paid to Champion, IR TFRE (REREEER
ultimate and immediate holding company AR ZITHEHR 540 450

The key management personnel are the executive
directors of the Company. The details of the
remuneration paid to them are set out in note 8.

Annual Report 2011
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24. SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 30 June 2010

24. BB LT
ARAEHBRAR-F—FER-F——F~A

and 2011 are as follows: =+HZHBENT :
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid  equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital of the Group  Principal activity
BRTR AEE
o) NG b AR 3 s B BRRAE Bz FEER
Calgary Investments Limited Samoa US$1 100%  Investment holding
P& FE D e REZER
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC. British Virgin US$1 100%  Provision of an
Islands E e-Commerce platform
REEZES for payment process
for global business
REMATREEFHE
ESE=)
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong HK$2 100%  Development of
BA 27T e-Commerce platform
and evaluation of
e-Commerce
opportunities
MBS FHEET A &TE
ERREEL
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100%  Provision of an
HIEBEBERER AR B 27T e-Commerce platform
for payment process
for retail customers and
e-malls based
in Hong Kong
RBEBZZEREP R
BFESRHET
EENESE=
Honest (Macao Commercial Macau MOP100,000 100%  Provision of consulting
Offshore) Limited RFY 100,0008 P9 & services, data
i CRPIBE R ERS) BR AR processing and
selling activities
REFZARE - BIREE
KIHEEE
Pickworth Limited Samoa US$1 100%  Investment holding
P& E TR 17T REZER

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

MAFE TER RREAREARRE - S8 Q7 HE
ERARERZEBRES

HIREE =
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25. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 25, 22 EZHEZH
COMPANY
Financial information of the Company at the end of the ARARRREHRTER 2 HEERBE
reporting period includes:

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT T

Non-current assets FREBEE
Interest in subsidiaries RET B AR 2 s - 2,071

Current assets REBEE
Other receivables FEULEL A IR 108 112
Amount due from subsidiaries FEUSB B A Rl 2 5B 9,714 8,481
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB RS 7,146 9,714
16,968 18,307
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables FE A5 EL At 338 656 634
Amount due to a subsidiary B —REK B AR ZZIE 84 =
740 634
Net current assets MEEEFTE 16,228 17,673
Net assets BEFE 16,228 19,744

Capital and reserves RAER #E
Share capital A% 7R 15,000 15,000
Reserves i 1,228 4,744
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZAAFIHB A FE(LHEE 16,228 19,744

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
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Financial Summary

MR

Year ended 30 June

BEXA=THLFE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ZE——F —T-TF ZZTNF ZTTN\F ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT T FHT T
RESULTS E4
Turnover | 3,124 3,058 3,510 5,018 6,351
Other income E A 9 9 91 339 246
General and administrative
expenses and depreciation  —#& M 1Tz H
and amortisation UA T 37 8 S 8 6 (2,296) 2,153) 2,214) (2,231) (3,080)
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of interest in f A 1) Rl 4
an associate and amount ez N I WORIR
due from an associate FrigEsR 2 BB R 18 - — = = (312)
Marketing and promotion
expenses iSRS (303) (384) (241) (781) (@83)
Staff costs EERA (3,099) (3,008) (2,953) (3,361) (2,934)
Loss for the year NEEEE (2,565) (2,478) (1,807) (986) (12)
At 30 June
HA<A=+H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——F —ZT-ZTF ZTTHNhF ZZETN\F ZITZLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FHT FHET FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FERBEE 2 3 8 17 24
Current assets B E 12,095 14,667 17,183 18,861 19,889
Current liabilities mEAE (1,016) (1,024) (1,067) (947) (996)
11,081 13,646 16,124 17,931 18,917
HEEE —E——FFH
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ERHE

AANERRBBEE((BBEE| L [ARADZEFE([ESE ) ERAQARLEWNBAR (AT [AEHE])
BE_T——FR A=THILFEZXE -

BHE-Z—F XA=ZTHILFE SERELEES,124,00087T © EF 2 LEEF A3,058,000/87T : F
BB 52,565,000 7 0 EFZEBEE T AEE24780008L R-E——FNA=1+H KEEIEIT
e MIRE4)511,667,0008 7T °

BELHEEENR TR  EFREAELEERITEAMBER YVERARERKNAMEBNTIRERE - LE
BRRGER BETHEERGABEMNEEREMIAARINTA KEKEXBNITRSEREME

B ENEHRRINHBGREHER  BIRHTRLEE - MEDSHING - AEEBEEREADHK

BNEERLAEELY  ABNERENEBURBERBNETPE - WAL FIER S B ERRE LT
RTR - R TEILER  SESSFRSMS2EMGHELY  USHAEBHIMEREZ S mE R
RITER ©

EFEefeHKREMNEBETHANER  BEAUH HERNEERARRG AERZ BEKRE - RFRTE
R EEBEEERDEMARLERNE  UPHEEER -

BERREAER —FE——FtA_HBMRE - 10 —EETFHEEEFALANBERERNTTESF - e
[ FFEBIAE B a5 BETHE » /R BIE b A B A R B B EHEAERR » HFIEKEIE R

R AABEROAMBEFENE  BEERSHRMNALEE @ BRHEGANSHREE - REATVEHR
REEMFNEHARE BT RED -

TE
3 ¢
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THBFWR S

KR BB EE

FA SEFERERETEFFIERHEBERE
FERARNEEZ X SERERBRAREEHA
FRGHBBRTARGREEER - FE2FERA
KEREFLEFEERRERIRMHANT =R

NEREE-EFENMBKER NAERRGEE
RIRTT B R RER - TEEBENRX - BRE
BREMUELES EMSEBZERERES

RIENE °

HE-_Z——FAZTHLFE KEHE:
R FIEAS3,1240008 T EF 2L BHFT A
3,058,000 7T + ANA R A AL EIE A 2,565,000
BT AFZHBRET AE1E2,478,0008 7T  AF
B2z EREEA1.718 -

OGS 2 BB E AN £ F 2 5,545,0007%8 T 88
i EF 25,698,000 0 EEHR — M MITEZ
2= 2 2,153,000 % 7T _EF+ 7% = 2,296,0008 7T °

R-ZZE——FRNA=1H SFEZMERREFFIE
| EERG YEEMARTEE - BREFIES
BEEMBEEXS

EXeEIAFENRBEMRE - EMFRERE -
N REBERFBERERXGERIIRENBASZEARE °

RenBtRHEER

RZEBE——FRNAZ1+H AELBZRBEENA
12,095,000/ 7T © & EE%)HE 11,667,000 T AR
TEBREES AEEVEFERHEE  MADHEE
A4 41,016,000 - TEAAFEE 2 ETHIE -

BREE —E-——FF§

R-ZE——FXNA=+8H AEELETARITE
BE-AEETEFREEMBESTERATEE -1
ZE——FRNA=ZTH  AEEVYETMERIAE
BREELER EHEFERER  AEEHEFFR
FEEH 11,079,000 7T © B HIAE R o A
EEWETAEE AT RSN EFERLLE - B
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BRI EBAE EFTERAEEREZIVBE
RRARMNEELERLK - REMABHREREE
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EFREEREEAR

BITES

X% 645%  ARAEFE - BEBBEENEER
FHEBR - WTARBEBRARXIMBERAF (B
PR EREM2BEMZEEEGRAR ([BERR)
LEBEBEARCR (BB ZIERATES B
BERRARRRZERAR - BBARAARRFHE
RAE - RIFABEPXABTEEIRE T BN NEE
P ETAE(UNVA AXRIZEREE L RERK
EEXREEI0FLR - N1987 FR LB ER K%
BLART - KRB ERBARRERBDE BN E R R EM
BRAR QR ZBKE -

HBENERBEEBNBRRBE - TMERZERDR
BRTERPERE  URBEHUHSRER A
B BINBIERIERZ TR THTE A< BE (CBE)
(2006)  EAMBEEZBBHERICEZEA]
%< %) & (Commendatore del’Ordine della Stella della
Solidarieta Italiana) (2006) * 74 15 57T I % BT 2= 1
BARKFEHT(2006) EBEBITEE ZHNLETEHER
+ Z) = (Chevalier de I'Ordre de la Légion d’Honneur)
COONUAEERFRTHERNE THREAEE
(2009) °

EERIFERFEFTERIE(1992) - BAEEEM L
R EAE(1003) ~ BB T2 48(1989) ~ AR XL
T 72 B 8822 B 4= (2005) K &) 7F F| i M AT BB L4
FREBEZEHE (2011) ©

EABAE HEATBSEAREEREREE
B BEAMBEBREEE SEFITREITERE
BREBZEE(AMBHRZE AP XKRER
E FHEZBEARBAHBHZESZERTEAR
HMEBEFITHEEEARREREGRRESRS
HRE o BB EB AT AREETIEN
40 (P2 1994 £1995F KA 1999 = 20004F ) * INE A
X ETZ B8 (A 1999 £ 20034 ) o t4h
B AEBESEERENAMBHE R XL
FZEETE(N2006E2010F) R EB — HEEmE
AIEHEEMEEE X E (702004 22007 F) °

2001 FRRBEIFHEHEFELERERARZE
NIEHITEE  R2010F 4 ARE - 2011 F1 A
HEAG AR EMBEEE LB ZEEE -

B 5558  ARRITTHAREL 1570 20004 f1A
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NREESESECEART KRB LB BEEE
BRBTEFT - AT REEBBH - ARER R E
MREZHEEAE - EMAREE AR - RN 1992
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BREH -

BRBEEERBNETBAREBPXAREIHER
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BH (LR BAZEGKE  [BUF21] EFRERE
MEALZEEERE Rt B ETEFENDEKE - T
BLHREEGZELEBMRERARZRHEH G E
MIBHRZBEREM - o WA REBLEEGE
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EEHBEERERET A BIEES RITHEBE
Bl 2 HREFE  FEEMEBEEREE KHong
Kong Corporate Counsel Association® & o B/NA IR
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BEARSBERNRLEBZIFNTES -

ERITES

BB R 545% 0 B20055 1 AR HEAERRFIENIT
EF - RARERETHREBIENTES  URE
BIERTEST - HAARAIFEEXLE WS - &
MR1988FEMARBER R 2B - EREAZHEEREA
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BELEBRABEEMBEREREER TRELE
AR TR LG CEMMRZEGER - K
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HEBRAANLREGNE  BERTLREGNE &
BEBMBEETMEEBERARANLZEEGNE - BEE
ARRMELZEENE REBTXRAEHESE -

BREE B —FFH

55



56

EFREREEAR

BANX 625 B2005F1 AR HERRBIFERTT
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